GrantWorks®v2.0 Getting Started Guide

for NeighborWorks Organizations

Version 1.0 September 2010

Working Together for Strong Communities



Table of Contents

Table of Contents 2 Technical Support & Contact Information 3 Useful Tips 5 Background 7 Accessing GrantWorks and GrantWorks Info Tab 8 Home Page 12
Useful Tips
Background
Accessing GrantWorks and GrantWorks Info Tab
Home Page
User Accounts and Security Levels
Initiating a Resource Opportunity
Application Main Menu
View, Edit and Complete Forms
Access Management Tools
Change the Status
Examine Related Items
My Reports
My Reports
My Profile
Appendix A: Application Status
Appendix B: Google Toolbar for SpellCheck
Appendix C: Application PDF
Appendix D: Find Submitted/Approved Applications
Appendix E: Add Organization Editor to Access Resource Opportunities

Technical Support & Contact Information

Technical Support

You can email <u>GrantWorks@nw.org</u> or call 1-866-720-1807 for any GrantWorks application technical questions or difficulties as well as questions relating to Authorized Official and security level access. Hours of operation: 9:00am to 6:00pm EST.

The Technical Support line is dedicated to support technical related problems and security access questions only. Technical Support will not be able to answer any Resource Opportunity specific questions.

For any questions regarding a Resource Opportunity application form, go to the GrantWorks Home Page | My Training Materials link and download the Technical Support & Contact Information. You will have the contact information by district. Each available Resource Opportunity will also have its own contact information.

Contact Information for the National Foreclosure Mitigation Counseling (NFMC) Program: Intermediary, State Housing Finance Agency and NeighborWorks Organizations

You can email <u>nfmc@nw.org</u> or call Constance Troutman at (202) 220-6314 or Rebecca Marksamer at (202) 220-2484 for the following:

- Any questions regarding a Foreclosure Mitigation Counseling Program Funding Opportunity application form.
- For Intermediaries and State Housing Finance Agencies, if you are the Authorized Official and have not received an email notification for your GrantWorks user name and password. Note: Neighborworks Organizations should use their existing Authorized Official login.

Other Resource Opportunities Contact Information for NeighborWorks Organizations

For any questions regarding a Resource Opportunity application form, please follow the information on the next section for Resource Opportunity Contact Information.

District Office Contact Information

Great Lakes District: Karen Whedon, <u>kwhedon@nw.org</u>, 513-221-4260 x207 Angela Rohs, <u>arohs@nw.org</u>, 513-569-5889 x210

Mid-Atlantic District: Kimyetta Meekins, <u>kmeekins@nw.org</u>, 410-962-3181 Sasha M. Johnson, <u>smjohnson@nw.org</u>, 410-962-4737

North Central District: Diana Mitchell, <u>dmitchell@nw.org</u>, 816-714-1211 Carolyn Young, <u>cyoung@nw.org</u>, 816-714-1210

New England District: Rose Brown, <u>rbrown@nw.org</u>, 617-585-5024 Fran Cinicola, <u>fcinicola@nw.org</u>, 617-585-5027

Northeast District: Kathy Gerardi, <u>kgerardi@nw.org</u>, 212-269-6553 x33 Leonora Davis, <u>ledavis@nw.org</u>, 212-269-6553 x29

Pacific District: Laurie Delman, <u>Idelman@nw.org</u>, 714-940-0144 x26 Yvonne Aguilar, <u>yaguilar@nw.org</u>, 714-940-0144 x22 Rocky Mountain District: Mary Williams, <u>mwilliams@nw.org</u>, 303-782-5251 Josie Martinez-Littig, <u>jlittig@nw.org</u>, 303-782-4805

Southern District: Sharon Kent, <u>skent@nw.org</u>, 404-526-1270 Chaundra Whimbush, <u>cwhimbush@nw.org</u>, 404-526-1280

Useful Tips

- Use the SAVE button on each page every time you add or edit information. Save early and often. GrantWorks does not automatically save the data you enter. If you move between pages without clicking the Save button, your changes will be lost.
- ☑ IMPORTANT: The BACK and FORWARD button from your web browser SHOULD NOT be used at any time during your data entry on any of the Resource Opportunity grant applications. You may only use them to

navigate when you are not within the data entry forms. During data entry forms, you must use the Seack buttons from the GrantWorks application forms.

- We recommend that you create a shared directory folder in your local network to keep all GrantWorks-related documentation and attachments for easy access and sharing within your organization.
- GrantWorks sessions will time-out after 30 minutes of inactivity.
- ✓ Use Generate Full PDF to create a PDF format of all the application forms with data entered for one Resource Opportunity. This PDF file can be saved onto your own directory, printed or emailed to others not using GrantWorks. The Full PDF is now generated as soon as you click on it.
- Use Generate Blank PDF to create a PDF format of all the forms <u>without</u> data for one Resource Opportunity.
- The size of each attachment on this page cannot exceed 10MB. The following files types will be allowed: bmp, doc, gif, jpg, pdf, png, ppt, tif, txt, wpd, xls, docx, xlsx, vsd, xml, rtf, html, htm, pptx, mht, mhtml, csv.
- ✓ If you cut and paste text from a Word document to populate any of the memo text fields, <u>remove</u> all special formatting such as tabs, bullets, underlining or bolding to ensure text is displayed as intended when the document is viewed as a PDF. Cut and paste <u>text only</u> from other documents into GrantWorks. Symbols and white space are counted toward your character limit for each field.
- Once an application is submitted and if NeighborWorks America requires additional information, it will be sent back to the organization as an application with *Modifications Required*. Each organization will only be allowed one submission for Modifications Required. The organization will have up to 2 weeks to submit the Resource Opportunity application with *Modifications Required*, regardless of the due date for submitting an application.
- Once the Resource Opportunity application is submitted to NeighborWorks America, the organization staff cannot edit the application; organization staff will have rights to view only.
- Authorized Officials who initiated a Resource Opportunity have access to the application. Other Authorized Officials within the organization will automatically be added to access the application. To give access to other Organization staff to edit, any Authorized Official can add staff as Organization Editors, see Access Management Tools.
- All organization applications with status in process, submitted or approved can be searched under My Home | My Reports: View All Organizations Applications.
- Organization Authorized Officials who initiated the application that has not been submitted will receive reminder emails: 5 days, 3 days, and 1 day before the application due date.
- Organization's Capital Fund Balance amount is located under My Home | My Reports: Capital Fund Balance

Login and Security

- There are two security roles defined for GrantWorks users: Authorized Officials and Organization Editor. These 2 roles will have different security permission levels to work on applications. Names of Authorized Officials are selected and registered by each organization's Executive Director. Each organization will have a minimum of 2 and a maximum of 3 Authorized Officials.
- After the organization's Executive Director has submitted the Registration Form for Authorized Officials, each Authorized Official will receive an email from GrantWorks notifying you that your security permission as the *Authorized Official* has been granted; along with your new user name and temporary password. After a successful login, the Authorized Official will have full access to GrantWork's available Resource Opportunities, to apply or submit any applications.
- Authorized Officials can add as many organization staff/organization editors on GrantWorks. Organization staff will not have permission to initiate or submit grant applications.
- User name and password are NOT case sensitive.
- If your organization's Authorized Officials have changed, submit a new Registration Form. Registration Forms can be downloaded from the GrantWorks Login page.
- All user names and passwords are as-is to access new GrantWorks v2.0

Background

Welcome to the *GrantWorks Getting Started Guide* for version 2.0. This guide will help you to start using the GrantWorks system. GrantWorks, NeighborWorks[®] America's online grant application submission and management system, was rolled out June 16, 2006. The system was upgraded to a new version 2.0 and rolled out September 1, 2010. This online grant application will provide NeighborWorks[®] organizations with a secure, easier and more efficient method to prepare and submit grant applications and access online information through a web browser. Each NeighborWorks organization will be able to apply for funding and technical assistance using GrantWorks, as well as track their application funding status.

Key features of GrantWorks:

- Simplified application forms and elimination of repetitive data entry.
- Real-time access to information regarding your application status and payments, reports, and organizational data.
- Automatic application error-checking, with email notification.
- Instant email confirmation upon application submission to Authorized Officials
- Once the Authorized Official's account has been created and assigned a user name and password by NeighborWorks America staff, each Authorized Official will be able to designate organization staff to work on applications according to multi-tier security levels of your choice.
- Security system only allows Authorized Official(s) to approve and submit applications.
- Able to complete your submission over time; no need to complete it in one sitting.
- Able to access previously submitted applications.
- Able to view awarded amount and date awarded.
- Able to access Capital Fund Balance information

Getting Started Guide Content

By the time you finish reading this document you will understand:

- How to access the GrantWorks site
- How to login and set security levels
- How to request an Authorized Official account with NeighborWorks America
- How to create a new user account for Organization Staff members
- How to apply for Resource Opportunity grant applications
- How to submit a grant online
- How to work with the GrantWorks user interfaces
- How to access previous submitted applications
- How to access Capital Fund Balance information

Terminology

Resource Opportunities - funding and technical assistance available for NeighborWorks[®] organization; an available opportunity for resources

Application – grant application within a Resource Opportunity; a request in process of being completed, submitted and approved.

Accessing GrantWorks and GrantWorks Info Tab

Login Page

- 1. Open your web browser, browser supported: Internet Explorer version 7 or higher
- 2. Type in the URL: https://GrantWorks.nw.org
- Remember to save this URL under your Favorites
- 3. This will take you to the GrantWorks Login page.



The Login page has the following information and features to assist you in gaining access to the GrantWorks application:

- Welcome Message with instructions for accessing GrantWorks for Existing User, New User (Authorized Official only) and New User (Organization Staff/Editor); and instructions for National Foreclosure Mitigation Counseling program
- Login Box is the area for entering your GrantWorks user name and password for existing user; click on Forgot Password? link to request your password. If you forget your user name, you will have to contact Technical Support.
- Registration Form for Authorized Officials is a link to download the registration form to submit for Authorized Officials

Existing User Login

Login	
Username	
Password	
	LOGIN
Forge	ot Password?

- 1. On the Login box, enter your user name (not case sensitive)
- 2. Enter your password (not case sensitive)
- 3. Click on LOGIN button.

<u>Note</u>: 3 failed login attempts will lock the user's account and the user will not be allowed access to GrantWorks. System will allow user to login after 15 minutes.

Forgot Password?

Forgot Your Password?

Please enter the following information	n to reset your password.	
You will be emailed a new password	if a matching email address is found.	
Please enter your login	*	
Please enter your email address		*

RESET MY PASSWORD AND EMAIL ME THE NEW ONE

- 1. On the Login box, click the Forgot Password link
- 2. Enter your loginID
- 3. Enter your email address (the system will use this email to send the new password)
- The email address entered on this page must match the email address listed in your user profile 4. Click on the **RESET MY PASSWORD AND EMAIL ME THE NEW ONE** button.
- The new password will be generated and sent to your email address

<u>Note</u>: You will be prompted with a message if your loginID and/or your email address does not exist in GrantWorks.

GrantWorks Info Tab

AMERICA ogin GrantWorks Info							
SEARCH <u>Advanced Search</u>							
Below you will find information on the GrantWorks application.	Select a cale						
REGISTER LOGIN	< Prev Mon Sun	th Mon	Tue	August 201 Wed) Thu	Fri	ext Month Sat
	25	26	27	28	29	30	31
e Information	1	20	3	4	29	6	7
Information	8	9	10	-	12	13	14
1. Important GrantWorks v2.0 Announcement	15	16	17	18	12	20	21
GrantWorks was upgraded to new version 2.0 9/1/2010 with brand new user interface	22	23	24	25	26	27	28
2. Technical Support and Contact Information Technical support contact information and contact information by district location for specific grant application	29	30	31	1	2	3	4
questions. 3. GrantWorks v2.0 Getting Started Guide (NEED FILE) A user manual on how to use GrantWorks v2.0 and step- by-step instructions on how to apply and submit a grant application.							

The GrantWorks Info page will allow all users without login or access to GrantWorks applications, to view and download certain information to GrantWorks applications.

Site Information

NeighborWorks America will provide the following links, click on each link to open and download:

Important GrantWorks v2.0 Announcement - GrantWorks was upgraded to new version 2.0 9/1/2010 with brand new user interface.

<u>Technical Support and Contact Information</u> - Technical support contact information and contact information by district location for specific grant application questions.

<u>GrantWorks v2.0 Getting Started Guide</u> – This is a user manual on how to use GrantWorks v2.0 and step-by-step instructions on how to apply and submit a grant application.

<u>Webex Recording:</u> Introduction on GrantWorks v2.0 for Grantee – This is a recorded webex introduction training on how to use GrantWorks v2.0. This training includes demonstration on how to apply and submit a grant application. You will need computer speakers, make sure the speakers are un-muted.

<u>Available Resource Opportunities</u> – This is a list of NeighborWorks America's available grant applications. Please read the eligible requirements, not all applications are available to all organizations.

<u>Registration Form for Authorized Official</u> – Reminder, please submit a new Registration Form if your organization's Authorized Officials have been changed.

Event Calendar

				🔟 Day De	tails				L.	Show
orking	Togethe	er for Sti		Name			Provided By	Date Type	Date(s)	
				FY 11 Rou developme			GrantWorks	Calendar	07/01/2010- 08/15/2010	
				FY11 Reso developme		portunities ing	GrantWorks	Calendar	07/01/2010- 08/15/2010	
				CLOSE DAY D	ETAILS					
Prev Mor			its deta. August 201	0	N	ext Month >				
Prev Mor Sun	nth Mon	Tue	its deta August 201 Wed	0 Thu	N Fri	Sat				
Prev Mor	nth		its deta. August 201	0	N					
Prev Mor Sun 25	nth Mon 26	Tue 27 3	its deta August 201 Wed 28	0 Thu 29	N Fri 30	Sat 31				
Prev Mor Sun 25 1	Mon 26 2	Tue 27 3	its detained August 201 Wed 28 4	0 Thu 29 5	N Fri 30 6	Sat 31 7				
Prev Mor Sun 25 1 8	Mon 26 2 9	Tue 27 3 10 Ca	its deta August 201 Wed 28 4 alendar	0 Thu 29 5 12	N Fri 30 6 13	Sat 31 7 14				

NeighborWorks America will post important event information and application due date reminders for all grantees. Click on the calendar date, a pop-up window will display the event detail information.

Home Page

AMERICA / Home					
		<u>My Reports</u>	My Training Materials	My Organization(s)	<u>My Profile</u> <u>Logo</u>
					SHOW HEL
Welcome Sam Authorized Official Change My Picture	Welcome to NeighborW > Click the Show Help bi > Click the View Opports > Click the Open My Inbs > Click on Open My Tasi > Click on My Reports lin > Click on My Training N > Click on My Organizat > Click on My Organizat	Itton above for mor Inities button below In button for system In to search and vio Interials link to dor Ion link to view you	e detailed instructions th v to view and apply for a f n messages sent by Neig asigned applications; thii wy your approved grants vnload various useful do r organization's info; to ac	Resource Opportunity ghborWorks America s is your to-do applicat and other available rep cuments dd organization staff to	tion list ports
	> Terms of Use Privacy F				
	101110 01 000 11110011	01101			
One along change as aste	a halaw				
o Sam, please choose an optio	on below.				
o Sam, please choose an optio	on below.				
View Available O	pportunities				
View Available O	pportunities				
View Available O	pportunities	o your organizatior			
o Sam, please choose an optio View Available O have 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be EW OPPORTUNITIES	pportunities	o your organizatior			
View Available O have 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be	pportunities	o your organizatior			
View Available O have 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be	pportunities	o your organizatior			
View Available O nave 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be aw OPPORTUNITIES	pportunities	o your organizatior			
View Available O nave 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be aw Opportunimes My Inbox	pportunities	o your organizatior			
View Available O nave 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be aw OPPORTUNITIES My Inbox nave 0 new messages.	pportunities				
View Available O have 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be w OPPORTUNITIES My Inbox have 0 new messages. ct the Open My Inbox button below t	pportunities				
View Available O have 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be w OPPORTUNITIES My Inbox have 0 new messages. ct the Open My Inbox button below t	pportunities				
View Available O have 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be w OPPORTUNITIES My Inbox have 0 new messages. ct the Open My Inbox button below t	pportunities				
View Available O have 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be ew OPPORTUNITIES	pportunities				
View Available O have 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be aw OPPORTUNITIES My Inbox have 0 new messages. ct the Open My Inbox button below t EN MY INBOX	pportunities				
View Available O have 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be w opportunities W opportunities My Inbox have 0 new messages. ct the Open My Inbox button below the en My Inbox My Tasks	pportunities				
View Available O have 12 My Opportunities available. ct the View Opportunities button be aw OPPORTUNITIES My Inbox have 0 new messages. ct the Open My Inbox button below t EN MY INBOX	pportunities				

The GrantWorks Home Page has My Home tab and hyperlinks on the top menu bar to help user navigate through the GrantWorks application.

My Home

- Show Help This is an online help for user to access throughout GrantWorks application; this online help will
 not include any instructions on any specific Resource Opportunity.
- Welcome User Displays welcome greeting and user name; user can upload a picture by clicking on Change My Picture link, browse to select the picture file.
- Welcome to NeighborWorks America's GrantWorks Brief instructions on GrantWorks Home Page
- View Available Opportunities List of available Resource Opportunities for your organization to apply; click View Opportunities button to view detail information on a Resource Opportunities
- My Inbox This is the system messages sent by NeighborWorks America; click on Open My Inbox button to view the message.
- **My Tasks** This is the list of application to-do list for the user. When Authorized Official initiates an application, it will be listed in the My Tasks list to be completed. Once the Authorized Official assigns an application for an organization staff, it will display on this list for the staff.

Top Menu Bar Links

- My Reports This is where user can search for previously submitted and approved applications, click on View All Organization Applications. It also includes a list of available reports for an organization: Capital Fund Balance or NeighborWorks Grant Overview reports.
- My Training Materials Provides links to download and view useful documents. View the following PDF files: GrantWorks Getting Started Guide, Technical Support and Contact Information or System Requirement Instructions
- My Organization(s) Takes User to read-only organization information. See your Fact Sheet administrator if any changes are needed to this information. You can also add Organization Staff contacts here to allow access to GrantWorks.
- My Profile Displays your user account information and login name. User can view and edit account information and changing password.
- Logout Ends your GrantWorks session.

Show Help

Click on **SHOW HELP** button throughout GrantWorks application for online help and guidance on how to use GrantWorks application. This online help is target for grantee only and will not provide any instructions on specific Resource Opportunity.



My Training Materials



Click on the top menu bar **My Training Materials** link to view, download and print useful documents. System will open a new window and prompt user to Open, Save or Cancel. NeighborWorks America will maintain and update this page to provide users up-to-date documents.

View Available Opportunities

My Tasks

Click on **VIEW OPPORTUNITIES** button to view which opportunities are available for your organization, click on **APPLY NOW** button to initiate an application. For more detail see section: Initiating and Entering Data for an Opportunity.

To apply for an item listed below		
	ow, select the Apply Now	button below each description.
Capital Fund Conversio Offered By: NeighborWorks America	n Request Option E	3 FY11 for NeighborWorks Montgomery Housing
Capital Fund Conversion Reg 09/01/2010-07/31/2011	uest Option B FY11 Perio	bd
Description: NeighborWorks@	America allows organiza porWorks capital. Organiz	PII Due Date: 7/31/2011 1159 59 PII Eastern Daylight Time. alons rated Exemplary or Strong to reclassify a portion of their alons must remain Exemplary or Strong throughout the ersion.
Ioan loss reserve for a specifi converted funds must be subs approved NeighborWorks® Ar	c lending pool or loan as sequently classified as te merica template and prote	thy restricted capital to temporarily-restricted for use as a cash outlined within the Investment and Grant Agreement. The morarily restricted on your balance sheet, following the cools for Loan loss reserve within the Guidance for the Conduct of % of the Capital Fruit Balance or S20000, whichever is less.
Note: This application is available	able until 7/31/2011.	
Contacts: Great Lakes District: Kathryn Mid-Atlantic District: Tanya W North Central District: Keivin I New England District: Sal Ste Northeast District: Judith Ros Pacific District Iman Rouce Rocky Mountain District Mich Southern District: Lawrence /	/inters, <u>twinters@nw.org</u> , Morris, <u>kmorris@nw.org</u> , 8 wen-Hubbard, <u>shubbard</u> se, <u>irose@nw.org</u> , 212-26 s, <u>irouce@nw.org</u> , 510-43 s, <u>irouce@nw.org</u> , 510-43	410-962-7096 167-714-720 167-714-720 167-754-750-70 167-754-70 177-754-70 167-754-70 177-754-70
Eligibility: Available only to Exe Balance of at least \$500,000.	emplary and Strong organ	izations that have a Permanently Restricted Capital Fund
APPLY NOW		
APPLY NOW		
APPLYNOW Ay Inbox	x	
/ly Inbox		GO View All My System Messages
ly Inbox	ges by: Select -	GO <u>View All My System Messages</u>
Ay Inbox	ges by: Select -	
Ay Inbox	ges by: Select - / Sender	Subject

 System. Grant
 Granted Access to Application # 2011-8217-69-TA
 8/13/2010 11:10:16 AM

 System, Grant
 Granted Access to Application # 2011-8217-0008-CS
 8/13/2010 10:19:17 AM

 System. Grant
 Granted Access to Application # 2011-8217-0001-SMNP
 8/13/2010 10:19:17 AM

 System. Grant
 Granted Access to Application # 2011-8217-0011-SMNP
 8/13/2010 10:10:10 AM

 Click on OPEN MY INBOX button to view system messages. NeighborWorks America will occasionally send out system messages for reminders, important information and updates on certain Resource Opportunities. The inbox also includes all of the GrantWorks auto-generated emails sent to user's email account upon submission, modification required and approval;

8/18/2010 3:49:36 PM 8/18/2010 3:49:36 PM 8/13/2010 2:25:49 PM

2. To view the message, click on the link on the Subject column; clicking on the link under the Sender column, will take user to their own email system.

Note: Any inbox messages that are more than 6 months old will be automatically deleted.



 Click on OPEN MY TASKS to view user's to do list. These are the applications that are in process to be completed and submitted. The application will remain on this My Tasks until you submit the application to NeighborWorks America;

Notes:

- The Resource Opportunity will only appear on the My Task list if you are the Authorized Official and initiated the application or if you are Organization Editor that have been assigned to work on this application by the Authorized Official.
- All Authorized Officials will automatically be added to the application access regardless of which Authorized Official initiated the application.
- If you are not an Authorized Official and you do not see an application on your My Task list, please contact your organization's Authorized Official to add you to the application Control Access.
- Once the application is submitted, it will not be on your My Tasks list. To find your submitted applications, go to top menu bar My Reports, click on **View All Organizations Applications** link
- Each resource opportunity you have applied for will be listed on your My Tasks list. Each resource opportunity has a system-generated ID under the Name column. Click on the **OpportunityID** link, this will take the user to the Application Menu of that Resource Opportunity.

All system-generated Opportunity IDs are similar to the ID shown below.

2011-8237-0130-TA OR 2011-8007-0147-CBO

The different parts of the ID are defined as follows:

- 1st field (2011) indicates the fiscal year application initiated
- 2nd field (8007) a place code, NeighborWorks[®] America identification of an organization
- 3rd field (0147) system-generated version number
- 4th field (CBO) abbreviation representing the Opportunity name

User Accounts and Security Levels

There are two security roles defined for GrantWorks users: Authorized Officials and Organization Editor. These roles have different security access to work on the applications. The names of the Authorized Officials will be selected and registered by each organization's Executive Director.

Once the Authorized Officials are identified and submitted to NeighborWorks America, their new user accounts will be created by NeighborWorks America Grant Administrator. The Authorized Officials will select and enter their own organization's staff names to access GrantWorks. The organization's staff entered by the Authorized Officials will be assigned as the Organization Editor security level role. Each security role is summarized below:

There are 2 security levels for an organization:

- Authorized Official full rights to edit, save, delete and submit an application.
- Organization Editor full rights to edit, save and delete data per each application only if control access is added by Authorized Official; will not have rights to submit an application

This table summarizes the different security levels and permissions:

Security Roles	Add User to GrantWorks	Control Access to Application	Read	Write	Submit Application	Delete Application
Unassigned – no permission						
Authorized Official	1	√	~	✓	√	✓
Organization Editor			~	~		

Authorized Officials

Authorized Officials will be able to:

- Edit their user account information, but not their security access.
- Add New Users to GrantWorks and assign each staff to the Organization Editor security role.
- Edit and delete user account information for Organization Editor.
- Initiate available Resource Opportunities and apply for grant applications.
- Add organization staff as Organization Editor to each grant application to allow application access and edit.
- Enter, update and delete information on grant applications.
- Download and attach files to the grant applications.
- Cancel an application in deleting an entire grant application before submission.
- Submit grant applications, such as funding and technical assistance requests online to NeighborWorks America, with an agreement to terms and conditions.
- Modify grant applications with status of Modifications Required.
- Check on the status of each grant application.
- Search all applications.

For new Authorized Official user:

NeighborWorks		1325 G Street, NW, Suite 80 Washington, DC 2000
AMERICA		Tel (202) 220-230 Fax (202) 376-260 www.nw.oi
	OF AUTHORIZED OFFIC te type or print the information)	TALS FORM
Name of organization:		
City/State:		
Authorized Officials:		
(1) Name and Title		-
Name and Title	Phone number	Email address
(2) Name and Title	Phone number	Email address
Name and Thre	Phone manoer	Email address
(3) Name and Title	Phone number	Email address
Authorization Signatures (please provide at	least one signature):	
Executive Director	Board President/	Other
Please print names:		
Date:		
Please return the form to: Maria Godbey, G 1325 G. St., N.W., Suite 800, Washington, I original document.		

- 1. On the Login Page, click on the Registration Form for Authorized Officials link;
- 2. Download the Registration Form and complete the requested information;
- 3. Fax or mail the Registration Form to the NeighborWorks Administrator indicated in the document;
- 4. After you have successfully completed and submitted your Registration Form to NeighborWorks America, you will receive your user name and temporary password by email within one business day;
- 5. Following a successful login, the Authorized Official will have full access to GrantWork's available Resource Opportunities, to apply and submit any GrantWorks applications.

Note: Once your organization's Executive Director has registered and submitted the Authorized Official's information, you will receive an email that contains your user name and temporary password. Your user name is made up of your first initial and your full last name. If your name is Jane Smith, your user name will be JSmith. The password that is sent to you is a temporary password randomly created by GrantWorks. You must change this password the first time that you log in.

Organization Editors

Authorized Editors will be able to:

- Edit their user account information, but not their security access.
- Enter, update and delete information on grant applications where permission is granted.
- Download and attach files to the grant applications where permission is granted.
- Modify grant applications with status of Modifications Required where permission is granted.
- Check on the status of grant applications where permission is granted.
- Search all applications where permission is granted.

For new Organization Staff/Editor User, once an Authorized Official can successfully login and Apply for Available Opportunities, they can add Organization Staff members and assign control access to certain grant applications.

To add organization staff to GrantWorks by Authorized Official:

NeighborWorks® AMERICA My Home	GrantWorks	Working Together for Strong Communities
		My Reports My Training Materia s My Organization(s) My Profile Logout SHOW HELP

1. From the Home page, click on the My Organization(s) link menu bar at the top;

My Organization(s)			
Select an Organization to view the information f	or that Organization.		
Organization Information			
organization	Role	Active Dates	Assigned By

2. Click on Organization Name takes you to the Organization Information page;

Organization Please complete all the required fields below. Required leds are marked with an *.							
Please complete all therequired fields below. Required fields are marked with an ". Organization Information Organization Members Organization Documents Organization Details							
Organiza	ation Information						
Name	NeighborWorks Montgo	mery Housing *					
PCode	1000						
Address	18900 Rockville Pike	< .					
City	Rockville	* State Maryland V * Zipcode 20850 *					
Phone	301-800-1000	* Fax					
Website	www.nmh.org						
Туре	Other 🐱						

3. Click on Organization Members to view the organization's current staff list;

ou need to add a memb	dded his/her information in the sys per's information into the system, si ons, select the Show Help button a	tem, you can search for the member. elect New Member .	
Person	Role	Active Dates	Assigned By
Person Roberts, Julia	Role Authorized Official	Active Dates 8/20/2010 -	Assigned By Administrator, GrantWorks

- 4. To add a staff to access GrantWorks and grant application, click on the Add Members link;
- 5. Click on the NEW MEMBER button to continue with adding a new staff;

6. If you want to search if a staff may already exist, type the name of the staff member and click on **SEARCH** button; the system will do a search for staff in your organization;

Organization Members Administrators with the authority to add members of To add a member to your organization, select the A If a member has already added his/her information If you need to add a member's information into the For more detailed instructions, select the Show Her Current Members Add Members	Add Members link below. I in the system, you can search fo system, select New Member. Alp button above.		
Person Search John Adams SEARC	NEW MEMBER		
Person	Role	Active Dates	Assigned By
Adams, John	Organization Editor 🐱	7/1/2010 -	

- 7. Enter the staff information; all required fields are identified in red asterisk *;
- 8. You can enter the password; user can change to new password at anytime;
- 9. For the Role, you will only have one option: Organization Editor;

Add/Edit I	Members					
				ization can follow these ste	ps:	
Please con	nplete the in Prefix	formation below. / First	All required fields are Middle	harked with an ^. Last	Suffix	
Name	Prenx	John	- Middle	Adams	* V	
Nume	¥	John	^ [Adams		
Title						
Email	jadams@)nmh.org		*		
Username	jadams	*				
Password	•••••	*	Confirm Pas	sword •••••	×	
Date Activ	e 7/20/201	0	Date Inactive			
Role	Organiza	ition Editor 🔽 *				
The Galde I		and the double line of		- he defends the		
				on by default. However, you iting the profile for from thei	may edit the information in a r My Profile page.	ly of the fields.
	18900 Roc	-	~			
Address			-			
			r			
City	Rockville	* Sta	Maryland	V * Zipcode 2085	0 *	
Phone #1	301-800-10	000 * Pho	ne #2			
Fax		Cell	Phone			
Website	www.nmh.	org]		

10. Click on the SAVE & ADD TO ORGANIZATION button to add new member to the current members list of your organization;



11. User name can be created by Authorized Official. User name rule: Use first initial and last name: Sam Jones should have a user name as SJones;

ou need to add a membe	ded his/her information in the sys r's information into the system, se ns, select the Show Help button a	tem, you can search for the member. elect New Member.	
Person	Role	Active Dates	Assigned By
Person Roberts, Julia	Role Authorized Official	Active Dates 8/20/2010	Assigned By Administrator, GrantWorks

- 12. If staff member information is available, check the checkbox before the person name who you would want to add to your organization;
- 13. Select Role as Organization Editor;
- 14. Select Active Dates; Active dates is the time period for which the selected member will have access to GrantWorks System);
- 15. Click on SAVE button.

Initiating a Resource Opportunity

Only Authorized Officials have the access to initiate Opportunities. Once an application has been initiated it can be entered and completed by organization staff members who have been assigned access to the applications as Organization Editor.

To initiate and apply for an Opportunity:

View Available Opportunities

You have 8 My Opportunities available. Select the View Opportunities button below to see what is available to your organization.

VIEW OPPORTUNITIES

1. Click on **VIEW OPPORTUNITIES** button on the Home Page;

	GrantWorks	Working Together for Strong Communities
		My Reports My Training Materials My Organization(s) My Profile Logout
		SHOW HELP
Back My Opportunitie To apply for an item listed below		below each description.
Capital Fund Conversion Offered By: NeighborWorks America	n Request Option A FY11	-1 for Neighborhood Housing Services Silicon Valley
Capital Fund Conversion Reque not set	est Option A FY11-1 Period	
Description:		
APPLY NOW		
Capital Funding Line of E Offered By: NeighborWorks America	Business Pilot FY10-1 for	Neighborhood Housing Services Silicon Valley
Capital Funding Line of Busines not set	ss Pilot FY10-1 Period	
Description:		
APPLY NOW		
Capital Funding Real Est Offered By: NeighborWorks America	ate Development FY10-1	for Neighborhood Housing Services Silicon Valley
Capital Funding Real Estate De not set	velopment FY10-1 Period	

2. Click on APPLY NOW button to initiate each Opportunity;

Agreement

Please make a selection below to continue.

Are you sure you want to create a new application?

I AGREE I DO NOT AGREE

- 3. You will be prompted to confirm creating a new application; Click on I AGREE button; This will take you to the Application Main Menu page. All of your organization's Authorized Official will receive an email granting access to this application.
- 4. Click on I DO NOT AGREE button if you do not want to apply/initiate the application.

Resource Opportunity Business Rules:

- All of the Opportunities can be submitted only once per period except for Technical Assistance which allows you to submit several requests. For example, organizations may submit only one Success Measures application in the first round of funding for FY 2010, but may submit more than one Technical Assistance application. Once you apply for an Opportunity that only allows one application, you will no longer see that Opportunity in the View Available Opportunities list.
- The Organizational Underwriting Opportunity is mandatory for all organizations applying for NeighborWorks America funding.
- In addition, certain Opportunities are one-time awards. If you have already received funding for one of these
 in a prior funding round, it will no longer appear in your View Available Opportunity list. This applies to most
 initiative and other special national program memberships. For example, if your organization is already a
 member of the NeighborWorks Community Building & Organizing Initiative, this Opportunity will not appear in
 your organization's View Available Opportunities list.
- Only Authorized Officials will have rights to Submit or Cancel an application. Organization Editors (organization staff) can edit the application to which they have been given access, but they CANNOT APPLY, SUBMIT, or CANCEL an application.
- All organization's Authorized Official will be automatically added to have full access to all organizations' applications. All Authorized Officials within your organization will receive an email notification granting access to this application.
- All Organization Staff will automatically have read-only rights to all applications unless added as Organization Editors.

Application Main Menu

Application Main Menu is the core page of a Resource Opportunity. This is the page where users can access all information for one specific application.



Once an application is initiated by an organization's Authorized Official, the Application Main Menu page consists of the following options:

- View, Edit and Complete Forms Provides links for each Opportunity's Instructions and Application Forms that user can View & Edit to apply for a grant. There will be a view with all of the application pages for data entry and Requested Amount Form. There will also be a Create Blank Print Version link for user to view and print any blank application.
- Change the Status All opportunities that are initiated will have status as Application in Process. Authorized
 Official will have the following Status options:
 SUBMIT APPLICATION
 CANCEL APPLICATION
 SUBMIT MODIFICATIONS REQUIRED
 Once the application is submitted, there are no other options for Authorized Official to change except if
 Modifications Required is needed
- Access Management Tools Provides 5 links for user to do the following: CREATE BLANK PRINT VERSION – View and print a blank application in PDF format CREATE FULL PRINT VERSION – View and print an application with entered data in PDF format. ADD/EDIT PEOPLE – Add organization staff to edit an application STATUS HISTORY - View when the application was initiated, submitted or cancelled and by whom; organization can also view to know the status of an applicationa after submission CHECK FOR ERRORS – View the list of application errors if any.
- **Examine Related Items** Provide user all of the related documents for this application including disbursement information or related system messages.

View, Edit and Complete Forms

This is the module where user will use to enter all of the grant application requested information. There will be a list of forms for a Resource Opportunity in form-view, each Resource Opportunity will have an Instructions file to download as well as to create Blank PDF for the grant application.

View, Edit and Complete Forms
Select the View Forms button below to view, edit, and complete forms.
VIEW FORMS

1. Click on VIEW FORMS button to view the link to each form;



 In Forms section, click on Instructions link, (example: <u>TA Instructions</u>) PDF file, to read background information and how to apply for this opportunity;

8	B	🌾 👆 1 / 1 💌 🖲 69% 🔻 拱 🛃 Find 🔻
ß		
66		
		Technical Assistance Requests
		Background Technical assistance is the term NeighborWorks [®] America uses to describe the consulting services provided to the network organizations by NeighborWorks [®] America staff, paid independent consultants, or peer-to-peer assistance. It involves work performed within a designated time period that results in very specific outcomes and deliverables provided to the network organization. Work tends to be project-based, with a beginning and end, lasting eight hours or more, and usually includes one or more on- site visits.
		Technical assistance falls outside regular, on-going work performed by Relationship Managers and other Neighbor/Works [®] America staff that have direct contact with network personnel. This customer service and other on-going work is meant to foster extensive knowledge of the organization, support access to NeighborWorks [®] America products and services, and solve problems that arise in service delivery.
		When submitting technical assistance requests in conjunction with organizational underwriting funding applications, please submit all requests planned to start after January 1, 2010.
		NeighborWorks [®] organizations may submit technical assistance requests throughout the year. Priority will be given to requests that address Corrective Action items. For technical assistance that will start before January 2010, please contact the district office in addition to submitting via GrantWorks.
		Form Instructions Use a Technical Assistance Request Form available in GrantWorks to specify the types

<u>Note</u>: Each application will have its own instructions available in PDF format. The instructions give the background information and/or instructions on how to apply for a particular Opportunity.

Forms			
Statu	s Page Name	Note Created By	Last Modified By
Applie			
	TAInstruction		
	Technical Assistance Request		
	Deliverables and Outcomes		

3. Click on each Form Name link (Example: <u>Technical Assistance Request</u>) in the Forms section, to complete filling in the application;

SAVE DELETE PRINT VERSION SHOW NOTES (1) MARK AS COMPLETE CHECK GLOBAL ERRORS
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE REQUEST
Instructions: Please read the Instructions BEFORE completing the information below. To apply for this resource opportunity, complete the information
requested.
Save changes before moving to the next page.
Note: If you cut and paste text from a Word document to populate any of the memo text fields, remove all special formatting such as tabs, bullets, underlining or bolding to ensure text is displayed as intended when the document is viewed as a printable version.
1. Provide a brief description of the issue being addressed and the service requested:
0 of 1000
2. Select the specialty area for your request:
×
If Other, please specify:
 Does this Technical Assistance Request address a "Corrective Action" cited in a Program Review or other targeted review of your organization? Do not check yes, if the TA request addresses an "Area for Improvement".
OYes ONo ∗
4. Enter the projected dates for this technical assistance request:
Projected Start Date: Projected End Date: (mm/dd/yyyy)* (mm/dd/yyyy)*
5. Provide any comments on the timeframe, including any deadlines or special timing issues that your organization is facing:
v
0 of 1000

4. On the top of each form following are the command buttons available; Click on **SAVE** button to save the current form; any errors in the current page will be displayed as Page Error(s) on the top of the form in red font. User should correct the errors and save until no errors have been found is displayed.



5. Click on **DELETE** button to delete the current form with data and a new empty form will be displayed to input data. You cannot undo the delete and will lose all of your entered data.

6. Once completed filling in the form, and after saving the form, click on **PRINT VERSION** button to view the PDF file of current form; Upon click of **PRINT VERSION** button, click on **SAVE** button in the file download window to save the file to a directory of your desire. Click on **OPEN** button in file download window if you just need to view the PDF.

File Download 🛛 🔀	
Do you want to open or save this file?	
Name: output.pdf	
Type: Adobe Acrobat Document, 35.3KB	
From: grantworks2009dev.nw.org	
Open Save Cancel	
While files from the Internet can be useful, some files can potentially harm your computer. If you do not trust the source, do not open or save this file. <u>What's the risk?</u>	
🕞 🚱 👆 👆 1 / 1 🕑 🖲 71% 🔻 拱 🚼 Find 💌	
Technical Assistance FY11	
NeighborWorks Montgomery Housing 2011-1000-63-TA	
 Provide a brief description of the issue being addressed and the service requested: Provide a brief description of the issue being addressed and the service 	
requested:	
 Select the specialty area for your request: Resource Management 	
If Other, please specify:	
3. Does this Technical Assistance Request address a "Corrective Action" cited in a Program Review or other targeted review of your organization? Do not check yes, if the TA request addresses an "Area for Improvement". Yes	
 Enter the projected dates for this technical assistance request: Projected Start Date: 7/2/2009 Projected End Date: 7/8/2010 	
Frovide any comments on the timeframe, including any deadlines or special timing issues that your organization is facing:	

7. Click SHOW NOTES button to pop up the Add New Note window. Click on ADD A NEW NOTE button to add the message and Click SAVE button to add notes to the current form; Click on Edit link to edit the existing message. Click on DELETE button to delete a note. Click on CLOSE NOTES button to close the notes window. User can allow or not allow read the notes for specific users by checking the check boxes against the names displayed when a note is added or edited.

	SAVE DELETE PI		SHOW NO
Add New Note			
Message	Author	Date	Action
Test Message	Sam Jones	7/22/2010	<u>Edit</u>

- 8. MARK AS COMPLETE / UNMARK AS COMPLETE button will be disabled for all of the applications; this function will not be used in GrantWorks.
- 9. Click on **CHECK GLOBAL ERRORS** button to view the errors in the application. Review the error list; Click on the form link (Example: <u>Deliverables and Outcomes</u>) to correct the errors on each form. It could be that a required field isn't completed or you have entered a financial amount less than the required minimum; Click command button **SAVE** to save the corrections.

Document Type	Organization	Role	Current Status	Date Due
Technical Assistance FY11	NeighborWorks Montgomery Housing	Authorized Official	Application In Process	10/15/2010 11:59:00

10. **Related Pages –** On the bottom of each form, you will see a Related Pages section which helps user to navigate to the other forms of the current application.

Status	Page Name	Note	Created By	Last Modified By
0	Technical Assistance Request		Sam Jones 7/22/2010 3:41:53 PM	
3	Deliverables and Outcomes			

11. Once you are completed with the application, click on **Document Information** link (Example: Document Information: <u>2011-1000-63-TA</u>) to go back to the application main menu page.

Back bocument Information 2011-1000-	63-TA			
Info Document Type	Organization	Role	Current Status	Date Due
Technical Assistance FY11	<u>NeighborWorks Montgomery</u> Housing	Authorized Official	Application In Process	10/15/2010 11:59:00 PM

12. Click on the **Details** link at the top of each page to view the Document Type, Organization, Role, Current Status of the application, Due Date of the application. This is for your information purpose only.

ocur	<u>ack</u> ment Information: <u>2011-1000-6</u> atails	<u>53-TA</u>			
\sim	Document Type	Organization	Role	Current Status	Date Due
	Technical Assistance FY11	<u>NeighborWorks Montgomery</u> Housing	Authorized Official	Application In Process	10/15/2010 11:59:00 PM

Created By: Jones, Sam on 7/23/2010 12:30:10 PM

You are here: > Technical Assistance FY11 Menu > Forms Menu > Application Forms

Request Amount Form

Each Resource Opportunity will have different Request Amount Forms. Some Resource Opportunities may not have a requested amount form such as Technical Assistance Application; some will allow user to enter the Requested Amount; some will display the Requested Amount already entered from other forms or by calculated formulas.

ocume	ent Information: 2011-1000-00	<u>09-OU</u>				
Info [Document Type	Organization	Role	Current Status	Date Due	
1	Organizational Underwriting FY11- I	<u>NeighborWorks Montgomery</u> <u>Housing</u>	Authorized Official	Application in Process	10/15/2010 11:59:00 PM	
orms						
Status	Page Name		Note Crea	ited By	Last Modified By	
Ø	Blank PDF					
2						
	Progress Report and Organizati	onal Update				
	Operating Plan					
	Budget and Financial Informatio	<u>n</u>				
	FY2011 Resource Opportunities	Selection				
6	Requested Amount					

1. Click on **Requested Amount** link to either enter or view the requested amount for the Grant before you submit the application. The Requested Amount is usually the last page of the application. This link will take you to the **Requested Amount** page;

REQUESTED AMOUNT
Instructions: Enter the Requested Amount for this Resource Opportunity application. Refer to the Instructions for more detail.
This is the end of the application, please return to the application main menu and check for any application errors. If you are the Authorized Official you may submit this application under Change the Status function.
Requested Amount

2. Enter the Requested Amount; click SAVE.

Some Resource Opportunities carry over the Requested Amount and/or per calculated formula, in which case, you will only see it as a read-only.

REQUESTED AMOUNT

Requested Amount: \$80,000.00

For Real Estate Development Resource Opportunity, the Requested Amount is per Real Estate projects. The requested amount and priority were entered while filling the form and upon save the amount is displayed in the Requested Amount page.

12. a.	Requested amount for	\$150,000.00 *	
b.	Priority for this project:	1*	

REQUESTED AMOUNT

Real Estate Pre-Development: \$550,000.00 Real Estate Development **\$0** Real Estate Post-Development \$200,000.00 Total Requested Amount: \$750,000.00

Note: If the requested amount for any of the project is changed, need to click on SAVE button in the Requested Amount form to reflect the changes to Total Requested Amount.

Multiple Projects within a Resource Opportunity

Some Resource Opportunity applications (Example: Capital Funding Real Estate Development) will give you an option to add multiple projects. When filling out a multiple project Opportunities:

F	orms				
	Status	Page Name	Note	Created By	Last Modified By
	Ø	Blank PDF			
	Real Es				
	2 (Development Project Selection		Sam Jones 8/24/2010 12:30:32 PM	Sam Jones 8/24/2010 1:37:11 PM
	Reques				
	Ø	Capital Funding Real Estate Development Summary			
	2	Requested Amount		Sam Jones 8/24/2010 12:33:26 PM	

1. Click on Development Project Selection link;

DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SELECTION

Instructions: Each organization can only apply 3 projects in total within any real estate development area (Pre, Development and Post).

Select and check how many project(s) per Real Estate Development area, upon Save, you will see the application form for each project.

Real Fetate Pre-Development
Pre-Development Project 1
Pre-Development Project 2
Pre-Development Project 3
Real Estate Development
Development Project 1
Development Project 2
Development Project 3
Real Estate Post-Development
Post-Development Project 1

- Post-Development Project 2
- Post-Development Project 3
- 2. Check the check boxes to create project(s) per Real Estate Development area (Pre Development, Development, Post-Development);
- 3. Click on **SAVE** button to create the selected projects;
- 4. Click on Forms Menu link to view the links to complete filling the forms for each project created.

Forms

Status	Page Name	Note	Created By	Last Modified By
Ø	Blank PDF			
Real E				
	Development Project Selection		Sam Jones 8/24/2010 12:30:32 PM	Sam Jones 8/24/2010 1:58:49 PM
Real E	state Pre-Development - Development 1			
0	Real Estate Pre-Development		Sam Jones 8/24/2010 12:31:40 PM	
Real E				
	Project Description			
	Grant Summary			
	Single Family for Sale			
	Multifamily, Commercial or Mixed Use			
	Readiness to Proceed Checklist			
Real E				
0	Real Estate Post-Development		Sam Jones 8/24/2010 12:32:12 PM	
Reque				
6	Capital Funding Real Estate Development Summary			
	Requested Amount		Sam Jones 8/24/2010 12:33:26 PM	

5. Click on each link in the Forms page to enter data in the application form;

1. Project Name	Real Estate Pre Development Project1		×	
	(check all that apply): *			
Homeown	ership			
Rental				
Commerie	cal (properties that are exclusively commercia	al)		
Mixed Use	(properties that include residential and com	imercial space)		
Other (Exp	lain):			
3. Project location	1:			
Address Line	1:		*	
Address Line	2:			
City:	*	State:	*	Zip:

- Click on SAVE button to save each application.
 Navigate to other projects using the links available in the Forms Menu as mentioned in step # 5.

Helpful Tips on Completing a Resource Opportunity Application:

Resource Opportunity Instructions: Please download and read the Instructions file for each Resource Opportunity BEFORE completing the application.

Back Button: Q Back During data entry, you must use the GrantWorks back buttons. Do not use your web browser's Back and Forward buttons during data entry on any of the Resource Opportunity grant applications: the system will not remind you to save or lose data. You may only use them to navigate when you are not within the data entry forms.

Top of the Page: \bigcirc Top of the Page To jump to the top of the page.

<u>Required Fields</u>: All required fields are identified by red asterisk (*). If required fields are not entered, system will prompt Page Errors upon saved. You will not be able to submit your application until all required fields have been completed.

File Attachment: The size of each attachment on each page cannot exceed 10MB. The following files types will be allowed: bmp, doc, gif, jpg, pdf, png, ppt, tif, txt, wpd, xls, docx, xlsx, vsd, xml, rtf, html, htm, pptx, mht, mhtml, csv. We recommend that you create a shared directory folder in your local network to keep all GrantWorks-related documentation and attachments for easy access and sharing within your organization.

Data Entry Text Fields - For text fields, the application provides the maximum numbers of characters allowed. Beneath the text field, the amount of characters used is displayed next to the maximum amount of characters allowed. You cannot enter more than the maximum characters allowed.

cribe the deliverables expected from the District Specialist or Consultant/technical assistance provider, please be specific. De leliverables expected from the District Specialist or Consultant/technical assistance provider, please be specific.	scribe 🔺
	-

Copy and Paste Text Field: If you cut and paste text from a Word document to populate any of the memo text fields, remove all special formatting such as tabs, bullets, underlining or bolding to ensure text is displayed as intended when the document is viewed as a PDF. Cut and paste text only from other documents into GrantWorks. Symbols and white space are counted toward your character limit for each field. You can also use Google Toolbar for Spell Checks.

Radio Buttons: Double click on the radio button to deselect your choice.

Session Timeout: GrantWorks sessions will timeout after 30 minutes of inactivity, it will not remind or prompt user with timeout.

Data Entry Command Buttons:

Save: Use the SAVE button on each page every time you add or edit information. Save early and often. GrantWorks does not automatically save the data you enter. System will prompt you to save or data will be lost if you navigate within the forms using GrantWorks command buttons.

Delete: The Delete button on the application data entry page is for user to delete all of the data within a form to start fresh again. System will prompt to confirm deletion. This is NOT to delete the entire Resource Opportunity application, only a form within a Resource Opportunity.

Print Version: To view or print data on this page in PDF format; system will open a new window. You must click on SAVE in order to see your data on PDF.

Show Notes: SHOW NOTES (1) Each user can add own comments/notes to each page within a Resource Opportunity application, this is for more information sharing purposes. It is not part of the application questions or approval consideration.

Mark as Complete: MARK AS COMPLETE This button will be disabled for all of the applications; this function will not be used in GrantWorks. Please ignore.

Check Global Errors

^{ERRORS} To view errors on all pages within a Resource Opportunity application.

<u>Formulas</u> - For applications where there are built-in formulas, after entering data, click on **SAVE** button, and the formulas will calculate.

		"Level One" Counseling "Level Two" Counseling "Level					"Level Th	hree" Counseling							
5. Estimated number of TOTAL GOAL (New and	`08Q2	`08Q3	`08Q4	`09Q1	Total	`08Q2	`08Q3	`08Q4	`09Q1	Total	`08Q2	`08Q3	`08Q4	`09Q1	Tota
Initial) counseling sessions to be provided in <u>areas</u> <u>of</u> <u>greatest</u> <u>need</u> .	25	25	25	25] 100	25	25	25	25	100	25	25	25	25	100

Access Management Tools

Access Management Tools

Select the View Management Tools button below to perform actions such as adding people to this document or viewing the document history.

Access Management Tools provides 4 links for user to do the following:

- CREATE FULL PRINT VERSION View and print an application with entered data in PDF format.
- CREATE FULL BLANK PRINT VERSION View and print a blank application in PDF format
- ADD/EDIT PEOPLE Add organization staff to edit an application
- STATUS HISTORY View when the application was initiated, submitted or cancelled and by whom; organization can also view to know the status of an applicationa after submission
- CHECK FOR ERRORS View the list of application errors if any.



	🖶 🖏 🛖 🧄 1 / 1 🔊 🔊 73% + 🔜 🏭 Fed - +
File Download	Technical Assistance FTII Resphore/bries Hongumery Kousing 2011-1000-45-74 1. Provide a brief description of the issue being addressed and the service request() Provide a list description of the issue being addressed and the service 2. Select the specialty area for your request: Resource Managument If Other, please specify:
Name: output.pdf Type: Adobe Acrobat Document, 35.3KB From: grantworks2009dev.nw.org Open Save Cancel	 Does this Technical Assistance Request address a "Corrective Action" cited in a Forgers Northwey or other targeted review of your organization? The second address and the second address addres
While files from the Internet can be useful, some files can potentially harm your computer. If you do not trust the source, do not open or save this file. <u>What's the risk?</u>	 7. List the mame(s) of the person(s) in the organization with primary responsibility for coordinating and follow-up repeating this service. The test of test of the test of test of the test of test

Click on **CREATE BLANK or FULL PRINT VERSION** link to generate a blank PDF of an application page or a full PDF which includes all of the entered and saved data. To successfully generate a Full PDF, the application must be saved at least once.

<u>Note:</u> The Print Version also provides the PDF with entered/saved data but only per application page. This Create Full PDF includes ALL of the application pages.



Add/Edit People

ion Search	
rson Search	
erson Search ter a name or partial name: SEARCH	11:59:00 PM
urrent People Assigned	
Irrent People Assigned	
Person Organization Role Active Dates A	ssigned By
✓ Ms. Julia Roberts Test Organization Authorized Official 8/23/2010 G	Grant System

 Click on the ADD/EDIT PEOPLE link to view the current people assigned to this application. Only Authorized Officials can add / edit organization staff to the application; Access rights to the application will be per the security role selected. Also the number of days a staff would have access to this application is defined by setting the Active / Inactive dates in this section.

<u>Note</u>: All Authorized Officials within the organization will automatically have access to all applications; all Organization Staff will automatically have access to all applications as read-only unless Authorized Official provides Editor rights.

Person Search Enter a name or partial n:	ame: anderson	SEARCH		
People Found				
Person	Organization	Role	Active Dates	Assigned By
Frank Anderson	Thao Test Organization	Organization Editor 👻	8/23/2010	

2. To assign your organization staff to be an application editor, enter your organization's staff name, click on **SEARCH** button.

If you do not see the name of your staff on the search results, you will need to create a new user from the top menu bar My Organizations page. See section: My Organization for more detail instructions.

- 3. Check the box before the person name, the Role and Active Dates will be defaulted, leave as-is;
- 4. Click on **SAVE** button;

Current People Assigned

Person	Organization	Role	Active Dates	Assigned By
Ms. Julia Roberts	Thao Test Organization	Authorized Official	8/23/2010 -	Grant System
Frank Anderson	Thao Test Organization	Organization Editor 🐱	8/23/2010 -	Ms. Julia Roberts

- 5. The name will appear in the Current People Assigned list.
- 6. Your organization staff will receive an email with reference to the new assignment for a Resource Opportunity and staff will also see the assigned application on the My Task list.

<u>Note:</u> Organization Editor will have rights to edit, update and delete information within an application. Authorized Official can Apply, Submit and Cancel Application and Assign Organization Staff as Editors.

Status History

Document Status History			
Status	Date/Time	Ву	Notes
Application In Process	8/21/2010 4:18:15 PM	Jones, Sam	
Application Cancelled	8/21/2010 4:18:32 PM	Jones, Sam	

Click on **STATUS HISTORY** link in the Management Tools to view the status history of the application: When the application was initiated, submitted or cancelled and by whom; organization can also view to know the status of an application after submission.

Check for Error

Organization	Role	Current Status	Date Due
<u>Neighborhood Housing Services Silicon</u> Valley	Authorized Official	Application In Process	9/30/2010 11:59:00 PM
e	e <u>Neighborhood Housing Services Silicon</u>	e <u>Neighborhood Housing Services Silicon</u> Authorized	e <u>Neighborhood Housing Services Silicon</u> Authorized Application In

- 1. Click on **CHECK FOR ERRORS** link to load the Global Errors page and to view the errors in the application. Review the error list;
- 2. Click on the form link to correct the errors. It could be that a required field is not completed or you have entered a financial amount less than the required minimum;
- 3. Click on SAVE button in the form to save the corrections.

Change the Status



This is where Authorized Officials will Submit an application. Authorized Official can also Cancel an application and Submit Modifications Required as needed. See Appendix A: Application Status table for detail information on each status.

<u>Note:</u> The Change the Status option follows certain GrantWorks system's business rules. If Authorized Official does not see a status option to change to, this means the option is no longer available. An example: If a Resource Opportunity due date has past, Authorized Official will not see the Submit Application button. Organization Staff/Editors that are not Authorized Official will not have any status options.

Technical Assistance FY11 Menu - Status Options

Select a button below to execute the appropriate status push.

Document Information: 2011-1000-74-TA						
	Info	Document Type	Organization	Role	Current Status	Date Due
		Technical Assistance FY11	NeighborWorks Montgomery Housing	Authorized Official	Application In Process	8/31/2011 11:59:00 PM

Possible Statuses APPLICATION SUBMITTED

SUBMIT APPLICATION

APPLICATION CANCELLED

CANCEL APPLICATION

- 1. Click VIEW STATUS OPTIONS button to view the available status options;
- 2. To submit application click **SUBMIT APPLICATION** button (Only Authorized Officials can Submit or Cancel application); you will not be able to submit if an application has errors. Check list of errors.
- 3. If you decide to cancel the application click on **CANCEL APPLICATION** button. This will change the status of the application to Application Cancelled from Application in Process.
- 4. Submit Application Agreement will be displayed;

Agreement

Please make a selection below to continue.
By submitting this Technical Assistance FY11 application, you are agreeing to the following statements:
I Sam Jones hereby acknowledge that the information submitted is accurate to the best of my knowledge. The Executive Director and Board President of my organization have authorized the submission of this Application.
By clicking on the "I AGREE" button below, you acknowledge that you have read and understand the requisites of this Application.
Once submitted to Neighbor/Works America, you will not be able to edit the grant application.
Click on "I DO NOT AGREE" to not submit and return to the Main Menu.
I AGREE DO NOT AGREE

- 5. In the Agreement page, click on **I AGREE** button if you agree to submit the application. The following will happen upon agreed to submission:
 - Current status of the application will change from Application in Process to Application Submitted;
 - An email will be sent to the Authorized Official who submitted to confirm application submission;
 - A message will display on the user's GrantWorks Home | My Inbox;
 - The task will be removed from the user's My Tasks list as well as other assigned organization editors;
- Authorized GrantWorks users may review the status of this application any time by login to GrantWorks at https://GrantWorks.nw.org.
- 6. In the Agreement page, click on **I DO NOT AGREE** button if you do not want to submit the application. This will not change the status of the application and will remain Application in Process.

Section 2018 Secti

Select the View Related Items button below to view see related items such as claims, messages, etc. VIEW RELATED ITEMS

The Examine Related Items will list additional information on the Resource Opportunity such as disbursement, recapture or de-obligation information. It also includes related system messages sent on the application.

1. On the Application Main Menu, click on **VIEW RELATED ITEMS** button to see the list the Related Documents and Related Messages pertaining to the selected application.

Organizational Underwriting FY11-1 Menu - Related Items

Organizatio 1	onal Underwriting FY11-	<u>NeighborWorks Montgomery</u> <u>Housing</u>	Authorized Official	Application in	10/15/2010 11:59:00
			onidar	Process	РМ
ated Docume t search results ocument Type	by: Select 💌		Created By	Last Mo	dified Du
lated Messag	es				
(boardin roballo					

 Click on the link of each document or messages to review the related documents or related messages. If select the message, it will pop-up to view message details.



My Reports

This is where user can search for previously submitted and approved applications and other available reports including: Capital Fund Balance or NeighborWorks Grant Overview reports.

	My Reports	My Taining Materia	<u>Is</u> <u>My Organizat</u>	
				SHOW HELF
S Back				
My Reports				
Select a report below to execute it.	 			
Organization Reports				
Capital Fund Balance				
Quick Links				
Stew All Organization Applications				

Capital Fund Balance Report

- 1. Click on the top menu My Reports link to view available reports;
- 2. Click on the Capital Funds Balance report link;
- 3. Select your organization name in the drop down;
- 4. Click on the EXECUTE button to view the Capital Fund Balance information
- 5. Results section will display your organization's latest Capital Fund Balance amount with as of today.

Organization Capital Fund Balance

For more	For more detailed instructions, select the Show Help button.							
Organiza	Organization NeighborWorks Montgomery Housing 💌							
Export Re	sults to Scree	en 💌 Resul	ts Per Page 20) 💌 Sort By SELECT	▼ ASC ▼			
Results								
orgiD	District	Pcode	City	Organization Type	Organization Status	CFB Amount (as of today)		
16490	Pacific	8217	San Jose	NWO	Charter	\$1,256,388.00		

<u>Note</u>: There will be other reports available to the organization: NeighborWorks Grant Overview. This report allows each organization to select certain criteria and to see the total grant amount by organization within a district. The report is in PDF format.

View All Organization Applications

This will allow the user to search for any Resource Opportunities initiated, submitted or approved within the organization.

Search Applications

For more detailed instr	uctions, select the Show Help button.							
Fiscal Year	2011 💌							
Resource Opportunity	Technical Assistance FY11							
Status	Application In Process	Application In Process						
Recommended Amou	nt							
Date Created From								
Date Created To								
Date Submitted From								
Date Submitted To								
Export Results to Scr	een 💌 Results Per Page 20 💌 Sort By	y SELECT	▼ ASC ▼					
Results								
Application #	Organization	Status	Requested Amount	Recommended Amount				
2011-1000-63-TA	NeighborWorks Montgomery Housing	Application In Process	\$0.00	\$0.00				
1								

- 1. Click on the View All Organization Applications report link, the Search Applications will display;
- 2. The Search Applications will display, user can filter the search by: Fiscal Year, Resource Opportunity, Status, Recommended Amount, Date Created From, Date Created To, Date Submitted From and Date Submitted To;
- 3. Select or enter your available search criteria
- 4. Click on the **EXECUTE** button to view the search results;
- 5. Click on each of the **Application #** column link to view the Resource Opportunity detail information.

Export Results To

User can export any of the report or search data to a different format.

Export Results to	Screen 💌	Results Per P	age 20	 Sort By 	SELECT	💌 ASC 💌
	Screen					
Results	Excel					
	Text File					
No results found	XML					

- 1. Once a report is selected, click on the **Export Results to** drop down; user can select Screen, Excel, Text or XML format;
- 2. If you select screen, you can view the results in the screen;
- 3. If you select other options like Excel, Text File, XML, report will open in a new window as format selected.
- 4. You can save the document to another directory.

My Organization

Organization Information

From the Home page, click on the **My Organization(s)** link in the menu bar at the top, click on Organization Name takes you to the Organization Information page.

The organizational data below is provided for read-only informational purposes. If any of the information is incorrect or outdated, please have your organization's NeighborWorks Fact Sheet Administrator make the changes in Fact Sheets. The updates will transfer to this page daily.

My Hom	
	<u>My Reports</u> <u>My Training Materials</u> <u>My Organization(s)</u> <u>My Profile</u> Logout
	SHOW HELP
O Back	
Orda	lization
-	plete all the required fields below. Required fields are marked with an *.
	Information Organization Members Organization Documents Organization Details
Organiza	on Information
Name	eighborWorks Montgomery Housing *
PCode	000
	3900 Rockville Pike
Address	× *
City	ockville * State Maryland Viceoco 20850 *
Phone	01-800-1000 * Fax
Website	ww.nmh.org
Туре	ther 🗸

Organization Members

List of the organization staff members with access to GrantWorks application. Only organization's Authorized Official can add new staff members.

Organization Members

Administrators with the authority to add members to your organization can follow these steps:

To add a member to your organization, select the Add Members link below.

If a member has already added his/her information in the system, you can search for the member.

If you need to add a member's information into the system, select New Member.

For more detailed instructions, select the Show Help button above.

Current Members | Add Members

Person	Role	Active Dates	Assigned By
Jones, Sam	Authorized Official	7/1/2010 -	Administrator, GrantWorks
Robinson, Lynne	Board President	7/20/2010 -	
Persel, Steven	Executive Director	7/20/2010 -	
Gaither, Douglas	Lead Management Consultant	7/20/2010 -	
Hull, Adrianne	NeighborWorks Contact	7/20/2010	

Organization Documents

List of organization's documents including applications initiated, submitted or approved. It also includes the list of grant disbursements information.

Document Type	Name	Current Status	Year
NFMC Program for Intermediary and State Housing Finance Agency Round 5	A2010-8217-16-FINTHFAR5	Application in Process	201
NFMC Program for NeighborWorks Organizations Round 2		Application Approved	200
Organizational Underwriting FY07-1	A2007-8217-0726-00-OU	Application Approved	200
Organizational Underwriting FY08-1		Application Approved	200
Organizational Underwriting FY09-1	A2009-8217-0760-00-0U	Application Approved	200
Organizational Underwriting FY10-1		Application Approved	201
Capital Fund Lending FY11-1	2011-8217-0004-LEND	Application in Process	201
Organizational Underwriting FY11-1		Application in Process	201
Capital Funding Real Estate Development FY11-1	2011-8217-0006-RED	Application in Process	201
Capital Fund Lending FY11-1	2011-8217-0007-LEND	Application Submitted	201

Organization Details

This is the organization's additional information. The organizational data below is provided for read-only informational purposes. If any of the information is incorrect or outdated, please have your organization's NeighborWorks Fact Sheet Administrator make the changes in Fact Sheets. The updates will transfer to this page daily.

ORGANIZATION DETAILS	
Network Organization	
Status	Unknown
Chartered Date	1/3/2005
Incorporated Date	1/3/2005
District	Mid-Atlantic 💌
Executive Director Name	Steven Persel
Executive Director Phone	301-800-3454
Executive Director Email	spersel@nmh.org
Board President Name	Lynne Robinson
Board President Phone	301-800-3489
Board President Email	Irobinson@nmh.org
Eligible	
Reason for not Eligible	
Rating	~
Line of Business	
National Initiative National Programs	
NeighborWorks Contact Name	Adrianne Hull
NeighborWorks Contact Job Title	District Services Manager
- NeighborWorks Contact Phone	404-347-1004
NeighborWorks Contact Email	ahull@nw.org
Lead Management Consultant	Douglas Gaither
Lead Management Consultant Phone	
Lead Management Consultant Email	dgaither@nw.org
coust management consultant citiali	againer@nw.org

My Profile

This is your user account information. Users can edit their information.

1. From the My Home page, click on My Profile link in the top menu bar;

My Profile

		-	Is below; required fields	are marked with	h an *.	
Contact In						
	Prefix	First	Middle	Last	Suffix	
Name	~	Sam	*	Jones	*	
Title						
Address	18900 R	ockville Pike	*			
City	Rockville	*	State	Maryland	V* Zipcode 20850	*
Phone #1	(301) 80	D-1000	* Phone #2			
Fax			Cell Phone			
Email	nwonetw	ork@gmail.com		•		
Website	http://ww	w.nmh.org				
Username	sjones	*				
Password		*	Confirm Password	1	*	
Organizati	ion Inforr	nation				
Organiza	ition		Role		Active Dates	Assigned By
Neighbor	rWorks Mc	intgomery Housi	ng Authoriz	zed Official	07/01/2010 - open ended	Administrator, GrantWorks

- To change the temporary password: Enter new password in the Password text box and re-enter the new password in the Confirm Password text box;
- 3. Click **SAVE** button.



- 4. To add or edit your picture file: Scroll down to the Change My Home Page Picture section;
- 5. Click Browse and locate your picture file, select the picture file;
- 6. Click SAVE button. This will update your picture on the Welcome Home Page

Appendix A: Application Status

The following table describes the application process and the changes to the application status. The status is in the order of application process.

Status	Process Steps
Application In Process	You have initiated a grant application. Enter all required application data and click Submit when finished.
Application Submitted	You have finished the application and clicked Submit . The application has been received but is not yet being processed by NeighborWorks America staff. At this point the application cannot be edited by anyone within your organization. You will not be able to submit the application if the deadline has passed. You will not be able to submit if there are Errors in the application. This status will not be on your My Tasks List (to do).
Application In Review	NeighborWorks America staff is processing the application. At this point the application cannot be edited by anyone within your organization. This status will not be on your My Tasks List (to do).
Application Modifications Required	NeighborWorks America staff has initially reviewed the application for any missing data and/or documents, and has sent it back to the organization for updates. Each organization will be allowed to edit a Resource Opportunity only once. The application can be edited and resubmitted one time if sent back by NeighborWorks America.
Application Modifications Submitted	You have completed the required modifications for the application and clicked Submit . The modifications have been received but are not yet being processed by NeighborWorks [®] America staff. At this point the application cannot be edited by anyone within your organization. Each organization will only be allowed to submit one modification per Opportunity.
Application Approved	Your application has been approved. The application will now change to a Grant and will move forward in the Grant process. This status will not be on your My Tasks List (to do).
Application Cancelled	Your organization (Authorized Official) can Cancel any Application in Process. NeighborWorks America will never receive any cancelled applications. However, an application can be cancelled by NeighborWorks America and will have a status of Application Cancelled with reason(s) for cancellation. This status will not be on your My Tasks List (to do).

Appendix B: Google Toolbar for SpellCheck

Verify Google Toolbar for Google SpellCheck

Your Internet Explorer or other browsers may already have Google Toolbar with Google SpellCheck installed. To verify this, check your internet browser toolbar, it may be under the navigational Forward and Back buttons near the top of the browser:

Google	💌 🔀 Search 🛛 🖗 🌍 🎒 🛛 🗹 🛪 🏠 Bookmarks* PageRank 🛪 🍄 Check * 🐴 AutoLink 🔂 Subscribe * »
	ABG Charles

The Google SpellCheck icon should be on the toolbar:

If you already have the Google Toolbar with the Google SpellCheck icon, proceed to the Use Google SpellCheck in GrantWorks instructions below. If you cannot locate Google Toolbar, or if the toolbar is present but the

feature is missing, proceed to Download the Google Toolbar instructions below.

Download the Google Toolbar

- 1. Visit the Google web site <u>http://toolbar.google.com/</u>
- 2. Check that your computer meets the system requirements for operating the Google Toolbar;
- Make sure you download the right version of the Toolbar for your operating system. Download version 4.0 if you use Windows 2000 or XP;
- 4. Click the Install Google Toolbar button



- 5. Click on Agree and Install;
- Choose the Save option. Save the Toolbar to a location you'll be able to find easily afterwards (such as your desktop or "My Documents" folder);
- 7. When the download is complete, locate the Google Toolbar Installer and double-click it to install;
- 8. Select the **Run** option to begin installation;
- 9. You will receive a message that the Google Toolbar has successfully installed.

Use Google SpellCheck in GrantWorks

- 1. On the Internet Explorer, click the Settings button;
- 2. Select the Manage option then choose the Features tab;
- 3. Place a check mark in the box beside the **SpellCheck** option;
- 4. Click **OK** to save your changes and exit the window;
- 5. After entering your text within any or all of the fields within a form in GrantWorks, you can use the SpellCheck

button by clicking the ^{Check} icon on the Google Toolbar. The SpellCheck feature will highlight incorrectlyspelled words within text box of the GrantWorks application form in red colored font;

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE REQUEST

Instructions: Please read the Instructions BEFORE completing the information below. To apply for this resource opportunity, complete the information requested.

Save changes before moving to the next page.

Note: If you cut and paste text from a Word document to populate any of the memo text fields, remove all special formatting such as tabs, bullets, underlining or bolding to ensure text is displayed as intended when the document is viewed as a printable version.

```
    1. Provide a brief description of the issue being addressed and the service requested:
    Note: If you cut and paste text from a Word <u>docuent</u> to populate any of the memo text fields, remove all special formatting such as tabs,
    bullets, underlining or bolding to ensure text is displayed as intended when the document is viewed as a printable version. Note: If you cut
    999 of 1000
```

- 6. Correct highlighted words by clicking on them and selecting from the displayed word options;
- 7. Choose "Edit" to correct the word yourself if the right option is not listed;
- 8. Select "Ignore" or "Add to Dictionary" to leave the word as is (check the "Tips & Warnings" section of this article for advice on which option to choose);
- 9. Allow the spell checker to correct your spelling automatically by clicking the arrow to the right of the button and selecting the "AutoFix" option. With AutoFix enabled, the spell checker will correct all your text with one click.

Appendix C: Application PDF

Management Tools

<u>CREATE FULL PRINT VERSION</u>
Select the link above to create a printable version of the document.

ADD/EDIT PEOPLE Select the link above to perform actions such as adding people, changing a security role, or altering people's active dates on this document.

STATUS HISTORY
 Select the link above to view the status history of this document.

CHECK FOR ERRORS Select the link above to check the entire document for errors.

Click on **CREATE BLANK or FULL PRINT VERSION** link to generate a blank PDF of an application page or a full PDF which includes all of the entered and saved data. To successfully generate a Full PDF, the application must be saved at least once.



Note:

• The Print Version also provides the PDF with entered/saved data but only per application page. This Create Full PDF includes ALL of the application pages.

SAVE DELETE PRINT VERSION SHOW NOTES (1) UNMARK AS COMPLETE CHECK GLOBAL ERRORS

- The Full Blank PDF will also be available on each Resource Opportunity Forms view.
- The Full PDF is now generated as soon as you click on it; you will not need to wait for the next day as in version 1.0.

Appendix D: Find Submitted/Approved Applications

To search for your organization's previously submitted applications and/or approved grants:

My Home	
(<u>My Reports</u> <u>My Training Materials</u> <u>My Organization(s)</u> <u>My Profile</u> <u>Logout</u>
	SHOW HELP
•	
<u>Back</u>	
My Reports	
Select a report below to execute it.	
Organization Reports	
Republic Capital Fund Balance	
Quick Links	
Niew All Organization Applications	

- 1. Go to My Home, click on top menu bar My Reports
- 2. Click on the View All Organization Applications link, the Search Applications will display;

For more detailed instr	uctions, select the Show Help button.			
Fiscal Year	2011 💌			
Resource Opportunity	Technical Assistance FY11		•	
Status	Application In Process	•		
Recommended Amour	nt			
Date Created From				
Date Created To				
Date Submitted From				
Date Submitted To				
Export Results to Scr	een 🔻 Results Per Page 20 💌 Sort I	3v SELECT	▼ ASC ▼	
•				
Results				
Application #	Organization	Status	Requested Amount	Recommended Amount
	NeighborWorks Montgomery Housing	Application In Process	\$0.00	\$0.00
2011-1000-63-TA				

- The Search Applications will display, user can filter the search by: Fiscal Year, Resource Opportunity, Status, Recommended Amount, Date Created From, Date Created To, Date Submitted From and Date Submitted To;
- 4. Select or enter your available search criteria
- 5. Click on the **EXECUTE** button to view the search results;
- 6. Click on each of the Application # column link to view the Resource Opportunity detail information;

cument Information: 2011-1000-63-TA						
Document Type	Role	Current Status				
Technical Assistance FY11	NeighborWorks Montgomery Housing	Authorized Official	Application In Process			
/iew, Edit and C	omplete Forms					
the View Forms button below to vi						
FORMS						
Change the Stat	ue					
		ations or request modificat	ions			
the View Status Options button b	US elow to perform actions such as submitting applic	cations or request modificat	ions.			
the View Status Options button b		cations or request modificat	ions.			
the View Status Options button b		cations or request modificat	ions.			
the View Status Options button b STATUS OPTIONS	elow to perform actions such as submitting appli	cations or request modificat	ions.			
the View Status Options button b STATUS OPTIONS	elow to perform actions such as submitting appli					
the View Status Options button b status options Access Manage the View Management Tools but	elow to perform actions such as submitting appliv					
he View Status Options button b annus opnons Access Manage he View Management Tools but	elow to perform actions such as submitting appliv					
he View Status Options button b IXAUUS OPTIONS Access Manage he View Management Tools butt IXAUAGEMENT TOOLS	elow to perform actions such as submitting appli ment Tools on below to perform actions such as adding peop					
the View Status Options button b status centors Access Manage the View Management Tools butt MARAGEMENT TOOLS	elow to perform actions such as submitting appli ment Tools on below to perform actions such as adding peop					
Access Manager the View Management Tools but www.cewent Tools Examine Related	elow to perform actions such as submitting appli ment Tools on below to perform actions such as adding peop	le to this document or viewi				

7. Click on the **VIEW FORMS** button to view the application.

Appendix E: Add Organization Editor to Access Resource Opportunities



 On the Access Management link, click on the ADD/EDIT PEOPLE link to view the current people assigned to this application. Only Authorized Officials can add / edit organization staff to the application; Access rights to the application will be per the security role selected. Also the number of days a staff would have access to this application is defined by setting the Active / Inactive dates in this section.

Capital Fund Lending FY11-1 Menu - People

Use the Or, you	The functionality on this page will allow you add, delete or edit people on this document. Use the keyword search function to locate a person you would like to add. Select the check box next to the name in the search results. Or, you can uncheck the box next to the person(s) name under the Current People Assigned area to remove people. After you perform your modifications, remember to select the SAVE button to save your changes.						
Docum	ent Information: 201	1-8899-0009-LEND					
Info	Document Type	Organiz	ation Role	Cun	Current Status	Date Due	
	Capital Fund Lending	FY11-1 Test Org	anization Autho	rized Official App	lication in Process	10/15/2010 11:59:00 PM	
Enter a	name or partial name:		SEARCH				
Curren	t People Assigned						
	Person	Organization	Role	Active Date		Assigned By	

<u>Note</u>: All Authorized Officials within the organization will automatically have access to all applications; all Organization Staff will automatically have access to all applications as read-only unless Authorized Official provides Editor rights.

Person Search Enter a name or partial nam	e: anderson	SEARCH		
People Found				
Person	Organization	Role	Active Dates	Assigned By
Frank Anderson	Thao Test Organization	Organization Editor 👻	8/23/2010	

2. To assign your organization staff to be an application editor, enter your organization's staff name, click on **SEARCH** button.

If you do not see the name of your staff on the search results, you will need to create a new user from the top menu bar My Organizations page. See section: My Organization for more detail instructions.

3. Check the box before the person name, the Role and Active Dates will be defaulted, leave as-is;

4. Click on SAVE button.

Current People Assigned

Person	Organization	Role	Active Dates	Assigned By
Ms. Julia Roberts	Thao Test Organization	Authorized Official	8/23/2010 -	Grant System
Frank Anderson	Thao Test Organization	Organization Editor 💌	8/23/2010 -	Ms. Julia Roberts

- 5. The name will appear in the Current People Assigned list.
- 6. Your organization staff will receive an email with reference to the new assignment for a Resource Opportunity and staff will also see the assigned application on the My Task list.

<u>Note:</u> Organization Editor will have rights to edit, update and delete information within an application. Authorized Official can Apply, Submit and Cancel Application and Assign Organization Staff as Editors.